EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30

(SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited)

(Peter Callaghan)

(Block 5, Harcourt Centre, Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, Ireland)

03(6212)8316

1/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MMF
(Daiwa Gaika MMF)

us
100 ( 893 )

) ( )
2021 30 UFJ

( 108.93 )

2/265



@
MMF(Daiwa Gaika MMF)
() MME  US
(2017 14
NAV MMF
¢))
us
)
®
us
100 ( 893 )
« ) 2021
108.93 )
« ) MMF
« )
4
us
us

)

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(EU)2017/1131( )( MMF ))

30 UFJ (

3/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

®)

(©)

@)
2021 (
2022 30 (

®

( )
https://www.daiwa.jp/

23 19
UFJ
( UFJ )

SMBC
( SMBC )

©®

(10)
©))

4/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

aDn

(12)

)

) (

)

)
) (

us

5/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€Y)

MMF 1990 ( )

MMF

MMF 1996
MMF

31 32

MMF

MMF

6/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MMF
us
@
1995 25
1996 MMF
1996 17 MMF
1996 24 US
1999 19
2000 25 MMF
2003 23 MMF
2003 11
2004 30 MMF
2004 23
2005 29 MMF
2006 22 MMF
2008 16 MMF (2008 20 )
2012 10 31
2015 18 MMF
2019 21 MMF
2020 30

2020 30

7/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(©))
FriF
A HEME
(Daiwa Gaika MMF)
g/l it
EAELT f— Py b= —A L LAELTF f— - P FRAT 4 —
(FANTFAFINIFu K (FANTFAFIYIFe
(SMT Fund Serviees (Ireland) Limited) (SMT Trustees (lreland) Limited)
(# 4 7 SAATWNMFOREREDTRN - TR (ERERE, ¥ TAWEO ORI
R B O )
it = |5
gl & |%
b ik | dE
g I
[ e | W
z.l ¥t
g .
WK
b |
by
¥i
RiTl &R ﬁ
H Az S50 HIEAE 2 %
; £ty g1 NI
P R e i
(RATISA & LCORES L TRAIL S ARAS AN L
D77 v FERBROWIE « SUHE L O IR 3EEs) (Daiwa Asset Management
(Eurape) Limited)
(A 7 SR HONIFLZ B3 25 £ 08 LU e 8)
|
A 3513 BT &
PSRRAE PR B -
=HUFJEAN >« A Y o b—FERIt 7]
SMBC H PRIEFRE S i #
LI
v ) M .
(AAIZI31T B 7 7 2 FIESROIGE - T B bt
LR ) KRI7 2y hei A MRS,

(B AT ek dm 2k 2 B W B S E)

8/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 21
( ) MMF
(SMT  Fund Services (lreland)
Limited) MMF
( 2019 21
) MMF
(SMT Trustees (Ireland) Limited)
2004 30 2004 30
( ) (
(Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) MME
Limited)
2004 30 2004 30
1996 2003 23 2004
30
2015
« )
MMF
« )
(@)
2014 ( )
1995 25
)
MMF
MMF
()
40
2021 40
( 6,078 ) 6,250 ( 82 4,938 )
) ( ) 2021 30
UFJ ( 151.95 131.99 )

9/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

()
1995 25

)
(2021 )

( 400,000

(Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland)
Limited)

100
(Block 5, Harcourt Centre, Harcourt
Road, Dublin 2, lreland) 62,500,000

*

MMF

~
o

@

)

)

©)

©

)

)

10/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MMF

18
12 1,270

12,700
) MMF

() MMF
MMF

() MMF
MMF

MMF

() MMF

11/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

() MMF
®)
)
MMF

(PricewaterhouseCoopers) MMF
()

( )

(
)
MMF
MMF
50

)
)
(D)
)

12/265



(

(

~

(

)
(

)

o/

)

)

25

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)(
(EDINET)

( 23

EDINET

13/265



)
( 26 198
MMF
)
MMF
MMF
®

MMF

(
)

MMF

EDINETOOOO

1 o o o o =5 225159

14/265

)(

Ooooooooooooooooooad

)
MMF
MMF MMF
( )
( )
( )

MMF



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

) )

cHC ) )

MMF

€Y)

15/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

16/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MMF

105

105
100

17/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0
€))

®
MMF
MMF

MMF
MMF

MMF

18/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

( )
MMF

MMF

MMF

MMF
MMF

MMF MMF

*

10

19/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)

®

MMF

14
15

e e e
N o g oA W N e

20/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2
2.1
@
(b) 10
15
2.2 2.1 (a)
40
10
2.3
15
11 (4)
20
15
2.4 13
2.5 10
2.6
15
2.7 2.1 2.4 15
@
®
©

21/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2.8 2.7
20 @) ©
2.9
100

2.10 2.9

(@

() 30

©

2.9
(d)
2.9
2.11 2.1
10
2.12 2.11
40

22/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

.13 2.1 EU 2015/61 10 (O 11
(©) 2.11
20
.14 2.13
2.11
60
.15 2013/34/EU
2.1 2.8
€) 10
®
4 17.5
@
®

23/265



3.6

@

(b)

©

(D

e (d

(b)

EDINETOOOO

1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

60

120

10

10
30

30
2.9
190

24/265

(

)

(

)

10

(

)

17.5



(

)

MMF

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)

) MMF MMF

25/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PRIIPs ( (EU
Regulation on Packaged Retail and Insurance-Based Investment Products) (EU 1286/2014))
PRIIPs (PRIIPs KID)

MMF

MMF
MMF
MMF
®) MMF

31 32

26/265



(

~

(

)

o

)

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

27/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

28/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

29/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30/265



10

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

31/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

32/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

) 2012
No 648/2012

@

(b)

©

33/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

105

2008

34/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

35/265



~ ~

(

(

o/

)

)

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

36/265



(

)

(

)

(

)

(

)

€Y)

(

)

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

37/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

38/265



(

)

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)
)

39/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010

30

2012 12 21 )

30

40/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 25

41/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 3
19

2016 6 23

27 /

42/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MMF

43/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FleDISTR, R—hI7x VA ERBRNLEES S AEERNICERTES LS ICERLICED
TY. AOJSTBESEFMICHTH2FREEFE (FAKICHTHER | FROMEE) OFL -
Bx - mVE, R— b7 UABLTMMORBENEAREISACODVWTERRLTVEY, Fe, E
DTS, R— b3 UFOBESEMICH T DHEEBIEEIRN | O bHRERE (B8
AR & FRHEEE (SAXRICEITISEL FHEOMERE) OBBERTULTVEY. JicE
ARERE 1 O OMEEMBEE. 201 5F58FRD 1 DAfcbRAEMEEERE LT, JidE
(#H51F0) ZFEBICHKR— I UF~BERAELEDODEHELTHRLIEDBDTY .

Pl b AW ) 8 Tl o e ) ) =R UFEMORBNEEEISAED
1 O&Eb iR il - FREEEOHE TR E RO R
US Bl - ih— 72 U
?:Z;cw (20 BESH--202 1HE4H) ﬁgﬁ (P01ETEH~202 E41)
THRIE (LN =l
AMNFE} | = RN A RN | OS5 RS AR Ba s | =T
B T ]
AgIEe €0 B33 gag
Ao 40 el
Al iy 20 192
. €9 '8 58 a1 1 ]
a0 Q aR80 L3 —d Lad D fw 3
R ] BT
IR 20 175 =23 16,1
22k by
0088 . -40
2016458 2017958 2018458 201899458 2020958 F=h72U7 BN ZNES FMES GREE SaER RRoe

A i@ A tt. Bloomberg LP. &5 UERHE
#2ROF—FERICE - BENAFZRRER
1HERE
HEREISAUL. R—FIr UFTORBNSRERLTVDEOTRHDER A,
gh— h2J 2 U OFHEERL. SEE (WS EHERICH— T2 UANBEELIZE0DEHHEL
Egg LIcBOTHD, JHO 1 OO EEEMBICRE IV THEL L SERERLBRELI8S0E
#m— FE' # UFOFHBEEEE. SRIIFORERERTTHRENTSD. AHICARRRENTSD
FRhe LIEHT. ABICABRFNULCRE., LIEERREIBERELDET.

CBHEET S ADEH

B & #--TOPIX (BXiAds)

Sk --FTSESERKMEN (FR<BE . AN—2R)

FEE--SE&P MAERSIEN

BAE{H -BBG/(— L XE1 FEAFEFHIEH

FOEER - -FTSEREERY (R<BF. AN—=2)

FRER---FTSEEEHBERES (A~—X)

(1) SEP HMEESTENI. Bloomberg LP. ¥BRELTVET,

(X2) 20214£8R248T. BBG/\—7 L« XEVFE8EFEREME. TIL—LJ—J EVFREExR
ERENICBIETEBELEY.

TOPIX (REF#EMEfEE) (&, HoHWRIIZFMSIAT (BT [WRREIIEZFIEI] SLWET.)
DHANMETSHD. HHORYE. FHEDLR. ARATEEERICHT ST TOHERIE, BER
BEFESIFAID A LTVET . B8, 77V Kk, WRRIESFMSIPRIC LD, RIFX(FRES
N260TREL, WERIEFNSIRE. 772 FORTELIIFTHICEART 2LV HAE(CH
LTH. BEZERALEZA.

FTSESEEMMIEE (B<AE. A~N—2). FTSEHREHIER (B<A+®. AN—2) BLUF
FTSEXEEMIBEMELH (ANX—2) ICMT 29~ TDHEHE. London Stock Exchange
Group pleEEZFOVTFNHIOITIL—TERICHEL 7. SIE#IZ. FTSE International
Limited. FTSE Fixed Income LLCEEREZNSODMEEHFCL>THEEZNTUVET,
London Stock Exchange Group pleB EUFFOIIL—TEEZ. BHOER. &EFEErRrEeE
heEUaLVHIELHBHEICDVT. GAICHELTCE—OHRFERNER A,

44/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€Y)

&)

®

45/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Q)
MMF

MMF MMF
MMF MMF
MMF
MMF
MMF

~N AN~~~ "~~~
~ O~ v v v v

~ AN~~~
N N S N

MMF

46/265



~ A~~~

(

N o

)

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ESMA/2013/201

47/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)

) 1

®

)
)
)
20.315 ( 15.315 (2038 20 ( 15
))
(
) ( )
) (
) 15.315
( (
) ) (2038
15 )

48/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)
( ( )
) 20.315 ( 15.315 )(2038
20 ( 15 ))
) )
)
)
()
()
()
20.315 ( 15.315 (2038 20 ( 15
))
( )
) (
) 15.315
( )

(2038 15 )

49/265



(

(

(

(

)

)

)

)

(

)

(2038

739 B(1)

20

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20.315 ( 15.315
15 )

)

50/265



(

)

110

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

739 H

20

739 B(1)

51/265



(

)

(a

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(b

)

52/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(
()

41
25

4
25

2006

2008

4
25

53/265



10

15

10

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15

de minimus

15

54/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

739 D(5B)
30 12 31

2010

55/265



60

(

2007

)

(

@

739 B(1)

(b)

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2007 20

)

©

56/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)

30

2012 12 21
2013

2014 2014 S.1I.
No.292 2014 10

30

30

57/265



(

)
2014 14

2014/107/EU
2014
S.1. No.583

2016
)

2011/16/EU

1997

EDINETOOOO

1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2015

2014/107/EU

891 F

58/265

2011/16/EU

891 G

(

)

2015



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

http://www._revenue.ie/en/business/aeoi/index.html

http://www._oecd.org/tax/automatic-exchange/

2014/107/EU

59/265



EDINETOOOO

1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
us
(2021
( ) (D)
657,830,053.49 24.30
602,863,504.70 22.27
336,935,632.59 12.45
264,937,267.33 9.79
219,303,292.97 8.10
164,936,666.84 6.09
24,984,699.36 0.92
25,785,540.70 0.95
409,815,538.92 15.14
-80,835.87 0.00
2,707,311,361.03
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)
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us
(2021 )
( ) ( )

)
1 | KowNIVEST IN SVERIGE cP .16 | 2021 30 100,000,000 | 1.00 | 99,976,332.50 | 1.00 | 99,976,332.50 | 3.69
2 | ErsTE ABWICKLUNGSANST CP 17 | 2021 100,000,000 | 1.00 | 99,970,363.28 | 1.00 | 99,970,363.28 | 3.69
3 | MUNICIPALITY FINANCE PLC CP .15 | 2021 2 97,000,000 | 1.00 | 96,981,011.27 | 1.00 | 96,981,011.27 | 3.58
4 | NED WATERSCHAPSBANK CP 15| 2021 13 90,000,000 | 1.00 | 89,951,281.02 | 1.00 | 89,951,281.02 | 3.32
5 | MUNICIPALITY FINANCE PLC CP 15| 2021 80,000,000 | 1.00 | 79,979,340.71 | 1.00 | 79,979,340.71 | 2.95
6 | NED WATERSCHAPSBANK CP 18| 2021 14 75,000,000 | 1.00 | 74,985,385.82 | 1.00 | 74,985,385.82 | 2.77
7 | Acoss (aENCE CENTRAL) cP 21| 2021 70,000,000 | 1.00 | 70,000,000.00 | 1.00 | 70,000,000.00 | 2.59
8 gg&gfg&ﬁozgpgi & 15| 2021 2 60,000,000 | 1.00 | 59,995,501.14 | 1.00 | 59,995,501.14 | 2.22
o | MuntcIPALITY FinancE PLC cP .16 | 2021 60,000,000 | 1.00 | 59,992,149.17 | 1.00 | 59,992,149.17 | 2.22
10| ACOSS (AGENCE CENTRAL) CP .18 | 2021 2% 60,000,000 | 1.00 | 59,975,448.36 | 1.00 | 59,975,448.36 | 2.22
11| EUROFINA CP .16 | 2021 14 54,300,000 | 1.00 | 54,283,354.78 | 1.00 | 54,283,354.78 | 2.01
12| CITY OF GOTHENBURG CP 7| 2021 10 50,000,000 | 1.00 | 49,999,055.80 | 1.00 | 49,999,055.80 | 1.85
13| MUNICIPALITY FINANCE PLC CP 15| 2021 12 50,000,000 | 1.00 | 49,998,750.49 | 1.00 | 49,998,750.49 | 1.85
14| ERSTE ABWICKLUNGSANST cP 18| 2021 20 50,000,000 | 1.00 | 49,996,502.10 | 1.00 | 49,996,502.10 | 1.85
15| ACOSS (AGENCE CENTRAL) CP 21| 2021 19 50,000,000 | 1.00 | 49,996,165.91 | 1.00 | 49,996,165.01 | 1.85
16 | MUNICIPALITY FINANCE PLC CP 15| 2021 20 50,000,000 | 1.00 | 49,984,380.95 | 1.00 | 49,984,380.95 | 1.85
17| kFw cp 17 | 2021 12 50,000,000 | 1.00 | 49,984,375.55 | 1.00 | 49,984,375.55 | 1.85
18 g:\‘jgf;;mgfg;ﬁﬁecp .00 | 2021 48,500,000 | 1.00 | 48,479,538.80 | 1.00 | 48,479,538.80 | 1.79
19| ACOSS (AGENCE CENTRAL) CP 23| 2021 27 48,000,000 | 1.00 | 47,903,704.98 | 1.00 | 47,093,704.08 | 1.77
20 tgzgzz&;gg:jgg Baden-lluertt .16 | 2021 26 40,000,000 | 1.00 | 39,996,446.03 | 1.00 | 39,996,446.03 | 1.48
21 tgg‘:szgzs;‘gg Baden-iuertt .16 | 2021 40,000,000 | 1.00 | 39,905,370.98 | 1.00 | 39,9905,379.08 | 1.48
22| FNS WERTHANAGEMENT cP 17| 2021 40,000,000 | 1.00 | 30,989,430.16 | 1.00 | 39,989,430.16 | 1.48
23| SAXONY-ANHALT cP 16| 2021 10 29 40,000,000 | 1.00 | 30,968,736.38 | 1.00 | 30,968,736.38 | 1.48
24| ACOSS (AGENCE CENTRAL) cP 18| 2021 16 35,000,000 | 1.00 | 34,987,375.94 | 1.00 | 34,987,375.04 | 1.29
25 | EUROFIMA CcP 18| 2021 10 19 34,400,000 | 1.00 | 34,370,682.26 | 1.00 | 34,370,682.26 | 1.27
26 | EUROFIMA CP .18 | 2021 19 32,400,000 | 1.00 | 32,388,149.38 | 1.00 | 32,388,149.38 | 1.20
27 E'SE?ENiﬁoﬁipgﬁ B .15 | 2021 18 30,000,000 | 1.00 | 29,998,500.24 | 1.00 | 29,998,500.24 | 1.11
28| ACOSS (AGENCE CENTRAL) CP 18| 2021 25 30,000,000 | 1.00 | 20,097,198.21 | 1.00 | 29,997,108.21 | 1.11
29 tgg‘:szgzs;‘gg Baden-iuertt .16 | 2021 30,000,000 | 1.00 | 29,996,534.49 | 1.00 | 29,906,534.49 | 1.11
30 | ERSTE ABWICKLUNGSANST cP 17| 2021 30,000,000 | 1.00 | 20,995,464.60 | 1.00 | 29,995,464.60 | 1.11
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(©))
2021
us
15 2,854,219 310,910 0.01 1
011 12 31 ) 854, . :
16
20l 12 31 ) 3,081,102 335,624 0.01 1
17
ol 12 3L ) 2,972,768 323,824 0.01 1
18
0l 12 3 ) 2,581,707 281,225 0.01 1
19
ool 12 31 ) 1,741,744 189,728 0.01 1
20
08 12 31 ) 1,588,200 173,003 0.01 1
21
oot 12 3 ) 1,811,602 197,338 0.01 1
22
20 12 31 ) 1,667,742 181,667 0.01 1
23
Coe 12 31 ) 2,188,850 238,431 0.01 1
24
2000 12 31 ) 2,852,799 310,755 0.01 1
2020 2,432,836 265,009 0.01 1
2,514,169 273,868 0.01 1
2,610,011 284,308 0.01 1
2,611,651 284,487 0.01 1
2,774,847 302,264 0.01 1
10 2,821,583 307,355 0.01 1
11 2,899,760 315,871 0.01 1
12 2,852,799 310,755 0.01 1
2021 3,008,904 327,760 0.01 1
2,947,562 321,078 0.01 1
2,788,705 303,774 0.01 1
2,707,311 294,907 0.01 1
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(10,000 )
us

( )
15 0.21014
16 0.21796
17 0.12800
18 0.10205
19 0.17285
20 0.58090
21 0.83928
22 1.40265
23 1.59791
24 0.52801

( )

( )
2021
(10,000 )
(10,000 )
us

( )
2020 29 0.05831
2020 30 0.03325
2020 31 0.01914
2020 28 0.01034
2020 30 0.01082
2020 10 30 0.00802
2020 11 30 0.00832
2020 12 30 0.00990
2021 29 0.00923
2021 26 0.00859
2021 31 0.00866
2021 30 0.00704
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us

)
2020 29 0.7094
2020 30 0.3792
2020 31 0.2253
2020 28 0.1348
2020 30 0.1196
2020 10 30 0.0976
2020 11 30 0.1047
2020 12 30 0.1129
2021 29 0.1123
2021 26 0.1120
2021 31 0.0958
2021 30 0.0856
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15 0.21014
16 0.21796
17 0.12800
18 0.10205
19 0.17285
20 0.58090
21 0.83928
22 1.40265
23 1.59791
24 0.52801

(10,000 )

( ) 100x (a-b) b
( )
( )
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)
us
5 303,019,124,516 276,129,034,171 285,421,887,086
(303,019, 124,516) (276,129,034,171) (285,421,887,086)
6 327,338,055, 808 304,649,780,903 308,110,161,991
(327,338,055,808) (304,649,780,903) (308,110, 161,991)
a 411,977,301,565 422,810,633,039 297,276,830,517
(411,977,301,565) (422,810,633,039) (297,276,830,517)
18 314,832,304,917 353,938,430, 801 258,170,704,633
(314,832,304,917) (353,938,430,801) (258,170,704,633)
19 318,103,998,495 402,100,286,776 174,174,416,352
(318,103,998,495) (402,100,286, 776) (174,174,416,352)
20 132,979,002, 930 148,333,387,572 158,820,031,710
(132,979,002, 930) (148,333,387,572) (158,820,031,710)
21 175,376,572,597 153,036, 389,603 181,160,214,704
(175,376,572,597) (153,036,389,603) (181,160,214,704)
2 170,010,772,511 184,396,781,348 166,774,205,867
(170,010,772,511) (184,396,781,348) (166,774,205,867)
23 208,704,137,353 156,593,358,524 218,884,984,696
(208,704,137,353) (156,593,358 ,524) (218,884,984,696)
o 315,991,326,167 249,596,378, 887 285,279,931,976
(315,991,326,167) (249,596,378, 887) (285,279,931,976)
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@
UsS
2020 12 31
2020 2019
( ) C ) ( ) «c )
5 407,204,928 44,356,833 358,198,001 39,018,508
6 34,030,181 3,706,908 18,707,950 2,037,857
2,3,4 2,419,475,492 263,553,465 1,824,442,106 198,736,479
2,860,710,601 311,617,206 2,201,348,057 239,792,844
7 7,911,187 861,766 12,498,099 1,361,418
7,911,187 861,766 12,498,099 1,361,418
2,852,799,414 310,755,440 2,188,849,958 238,431,426

2021

20
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@
UsS
2020 12 31
2020 2019

( ) C ) ( ) «c )
2 16,198,176 1,764,467 44,258,500 4,821,078
16,198,176 1,764,467 44,258,500 4,821,078
9 566,244 61,681 2,206,112 240,312
9 203,348 22,151 622,123 67,768
9 219,313 23,890 669,313 72,908
9 109,109 11,885 333,810 36,362
9 3,267,558 355,935 9,479,595 1,032,612
23,475 2,557 32,366 3,526
369,116 40,208 1,024,190 111,565
4,758,163 518,307 14,367,509 1,565,053
2 (11,440,013) (1,246,161) (29,890,991) (3,256,026)
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UsS
2020 12 31
2020 2019
( ) « D ( ) « D
2,188,849,958 238,431,426  1,667,742,178 181,667,155
3,159,913,262 344,209,352 2,087,041,373 227,341,417

(2,495,963,806)  (271,885,337) (1,565,933,593)  (170,577,146)

12 3 2,852,799,414 310,755,440  2,188,849,958 238,431,426
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2020 12 31
1996 7 5 1996 7 17 2019 1 21
2006 6 23
1990
2015 6 18
MMFR 2009 1 21 2019 1 21
NAV MMF 2009 1 21
NAV MMF 2020 7 31
us
2020 6 30
2020 9 30
102
FRS102

FRS102
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FRS102 1AS39
usD
us
usS
FRS102 22
1 0.01
1
100 1 1

FRS102 7.1
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1
1
2

3

2020 2019

2,419,134,130 1,824,192,484

341,362 249,622

2,419,475,492 1,824,442,106

2020 12 31 2019 12 31

COVID-19
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2020
1 1 3 3
407,204,928 407,204,928
34,030,181 34,030,181
625,307,406 1,624,505,673 169,662,413 2,419,475,492
1,032,512,334 1,624,505,673 169,662,413 34,030,181 2,860,710,601
7,911,187 7,911,187
7,911,187 7,911,187
1,032,512,334 1,624,505,673 169,662,413 N/A N/A
N/A
2019
1 1 3 3
358,198,001 358,198,001
18,707,950 18,707,950
623,370,541 1,061,758,051 139,313,514 1,824,442,106
981,568,542 1,061,758,051 139,313,514 18,707,950 2,201,348,057
12,498,099 12,498,099
12,498,099 12,498,099
981,568,542 1,061,758,051 139,313,514 N/A N/A
N/A
LIBOR
bps 100 1%
25 50
10 50
2020
+50bps +25bps +6.25bps -10bps
us -0.06% -0.03% -0.01% 0.01%

+6.25
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2019
+50bps +25bps +6.25bps -10bps
us -0.06% -0.03% -0.01% 0.01%
+6.25
15%
30 10
10
2020 2019
14.41% 16.41%
2 7 4.60% 4.10%
8 30 17.51% 20.33%
31 90 57.48% 52.77%
91 180 6.00% 6.39%
181 365 0.00% 0.00%
365 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%
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BBH BBH
A+ 2019 A+
CMS
CMS
CMS

2020 2019
Aaa 42.27% 37.45%
Aal 23.52% 25.63%
Aa2 22.28% 23.05%
Aa3 1.33% 9.29%
Al 10.60% 4.58%
A2 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%

2020 2019
14.41% 16.41%
0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%
83.61% 82.00%
0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%
1.98% 1.59%
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CMS
CMS
4
2020 2019
34,030,181 18,707,950
34,030,181 18,707,950
2020 2019
7,150,472 8,428,973
715,218 3,584,176
45,497 484,950
7,911,187 12,498,099
2020 2019
218,884,984,696 166,774,205,867
315,991,326,167 208,704,137,353
(249,596,378,887) (156,593,358,524)
285,279,931,976 218,884,984,696
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2020 12 31

11

us

12.

1997

1997
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2020 2019
11,706 238,556
26,131 181,793
28,044 195,582
14,020 97,544
390,956 2,644,237
24,540 33,980
219,821 192,484
715,218 3,584,176

FRS102
9
20%
2 2019 2

2020 2019 2018
2,852,799,414 2,188,849,958 1,667,742,178
285,279,931,976 218,884,984,696 166,774,205,867
0.01 0.01 0.01

1997 739 B
739 D
2B
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15.

2020 12 31
1,186,904,469

2021 4 20

CovID19

2021 4 20
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1,094,967,903
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©)
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2020 12 31
(%)
(2019 : 0.50%)
Austria Republic of 0.18% 19-Jan-21 50,000,000 49,996,252 1.75
Austria Republic of 0.19% 16-Feb-21 20,000,000 19,995,463 0.70
Austria Republic of 0.22% 16-Feb-21 70,000,000 69,981,612 2.46
Austria Republic of 0.21% 06-Apr-21 50,000,000 49,973,196 175
189,946,523 6.66
(2019 : 6.58%)
Municipality Finance Plc 0.18% 12-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,998,800 1.05
Municipality Finance Plc 0.19% 08-Feb-21 40,000,000 39,992,616 1.40
Municipality Finance Pic 0.19% 12-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,993,666 1.05
Municipality Finance Plc 0.24% 08-Mar-21 40,000,000 39,983,210 1.40
Municipality Finance Plc 0.19% 22-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,989,849 0.88
Municipality Finance Plc 0.25% 23-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,986,467 0.88
Municipality Finance Plc 0.22% 06-Apr-21 20,000,000 19,988,764 0.70
209,933,372 7.36
(2019 : 16.96%)

Acoss (Agence Central) 0.22% 04-Jan-21 60,000,000 60,000,000 211
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.23% 28-Jan-21 50,000,000 49,992,340 1.75
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.25% 29-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,994,848 1.05
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.23% 16-Feb-21 5,000,000 4,998,628 0.18
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.24% 16-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,991,405 1.05
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.23% 26-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,989,850 1.05
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.25% 26-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,989,144 1.05
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.24% 16-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,985,871 1.05
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.21% 22-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,986,280 1.05
Caisse Des Depos ET Consignations 0.17% 08-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,995,044 1.05
Caisse Des Depos ET Consignations 0.18% 24-Feb-21 60,000,000 59,984,712 2.10
Caisse Des Depos ET Consignations 0.20% 10-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,989,174 1.05
Caisse Des Depos ET Consignations 0.22% 18-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,988,855 0.88
Caisse Des Depos ET Consignations 0.22% 22-Mar-21 50,000,000 49,976,490 1.75
Caisse Des Depos ET Consignations 0.21% 01-Apr-21 30,000,000 29,984,786 1.05
Caisse Des Depos ET Consignations 0.20% 19-Apr-21 40,000,000 39,976,682 1.40

559,824,109 19.62
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(%)
(2019 : 41.98%)

FMS Wertmanagement 0.23% 12-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,998,468 1.05
FMS Wertmanagement 0.23% 12-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,998,501 1.05
FMS Wertmanagement 0.20% 19-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,997,564 1.05
FMS Wertmanagement 0.19% 01-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,995,685 1.05
FMS Wertmanagement 0.20% 01-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,995,335 1.05
FMS Wertmanagement 0.20% 01-Feb-21 50,000,000 49,992,419 1.75
FMS Wertmanagement 0.19% 26-Feb-21 40,000,000 39,988,819 1.40
FMS Wertmanagement 0.24% 03-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,988,648 1.05
FMS Wertmanagement 0.23% 05-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,990,422 0.88
KFW 0.19% 06-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,999,683 1.05
KFW 0.20% 08-Jan-21 35,000,000 34,999,222 1.23
KFW 0.20% 01-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,992,229 0.88
Land Nordrhein-Westfalen FRN 29-Jan-21 25,000,000 25,001,269 0.88
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.22% 04-Jan-21 40,000,000 40,000,000 1.40
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.22% 08-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,999,268 1.05
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.22% 12-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,998,535 1.05
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.21% 19-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,997,376 1.05
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.19% 02-Feb-21 35,000,000 34,994,646 1.23
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.20% 16-Feb-21 50,000,000 49,988,064 1.75
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.20% 16-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,992,838 1.05
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.21% 16-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,992,480 1.05
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.20% 19-Feb-21 10,000,000 9,997,446 0.35
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.18% 01-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,991,605 1.05
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.21% 01-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,990,441 1.05
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.21% 24-Mar-21 50,000,000 49,976,974 1.75
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.21% 26-Mar-21 8,000,000 7,996,313 0.28
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.22% 30-Mar-21 35,000,000 34,981,833 1.23
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.28% 23-Apr-21 25,000,000 24,978,826 0.88
Landwirtschaft Rentenbank 0.19% 14-Jan-21 35,000,000 34,998,154 1.23
Landwirtschaft Rentenbank 0.19% 15-Jan-21 40,000,000 39,997,680 1.40
Landwirtschaft Rentenbank 0.20% 15-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,990,040 0.88
NRW Bank 0.21% 05-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,989,508 1.05
NRW Bank 0.21% 09-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,088,807 1.05
NRW Bank 0.21% 12-Mar-21 50,000,000 49,980,472 1.75
NRW Bank 0.21% 16-Mar-21 50,000,000 49,979,306 1.75
Saxony-Anhalt 0.23% 09-Mar-21 35,000,000 34,985,696 1.23
Saxony-Anhalt 0.28% 11-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,987,176 0.88
1,192,711,748 41.81

(2019 :5.70%)
BNG Bank NV 0.19% 28-Apr-21 4,724,000 4,760,159 0.17
4,760,159 0.17

(2019 :5.77%)
EBRD 0.19% 18-Mar-21 90,000,000 89,961,714 3.5
Eurofima 0.23% 19-Jan-21 20,000,000 19,998,084 0.70

109,959,798 3.85

97/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(%)

(2019 :5.85%)
City of Gothenburg 0.21% 10-Feb-21 36,000,000 35,992,237 1.26
City of Gothenburg 0.21% 25-Feb-21 5,000,000 4,998,484 0.18
City of Gothenburg 0.20% 11-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,989,007 1.05
City of Gothenburg 0.21% 25-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,988,342 0.88
Kommuninvest | Sverige 0.20% 01-Mar-21 25,930,000 26,036,840 0.91
Sweden Kingdom of 0.20% 11-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,993,511 1.05
151,098,421 533
(2019 :0.01%) 341,362 0.01

(2019 :83.35%) 2,419,475,492 84.81
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us
2020 12 31
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.61% 11-May-20 50,000,000 —
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.30% 28-Aug-20 50,000,000 —
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.35% 28-Sep-20 70,000,000 —
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.22% 04-Jan-21 60,000,000 —
Austria Republic of 0.18% 19-Jan-21 50,000,000 —
Austria Republic of 0.22% 16-Feb-21 70,000,000 —
Caisse Des Depos Et Consignations C 0.18% 24-Feb-21 60,000,000 —
Caisse Des Depos Et Consignations 0.22% 22-Mar-21 50,000,000 —
Council of Europe Development Bank 0.17% 09-Nov-20 53,000,000 —
EBRD 0.19% 18-Mar-21 90,000,000 —
FM S Wertmanagement 0.22% 12-Nov-20 50,000,000 —
FM S Wertmanagement 0.17% 30-Nov-20 50,000,000 —
FMS Wertmanagement 0.20% 01-Feb-21 50,000,000 —
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.20% 16-Feb-21 50,000,000 —
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.21% 24-Mar-21 50,000,000 —
Ned Waterschapsbank 0.44% 22-Jul-20 100,000,000 —
Ned Waterschapsbank 0.19% 24-Nov-20 75,000,000 —
NRW Bank 0.21% 12-Mar-21 50,000,000 —
NRW Bank 0.21% 16-Mar-21 50,000,000 —
Saxony-Anhalt 0.27% 15-Sep-20 50,000,000 —

20
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF
U.S. DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31% December 2020

2020 2019

Notes UsD usb
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 5 407,204,928 358,198,001
Debtors 6 34,030,181 18,707,950
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,34 2,419,475,492 1,824,442,106
Total Assets 2,860,710,601 2,201,348,057
Liabilities
Creditors 7 7,911,187 12,498,099
Liabilities (excluding Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units) 7,911,187 12,498,099
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Perticipating Units 2,852,799,414 2,188,849,958

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
On behalf of SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Keiji Nakamura Peter Callaghan

Date: 20" April 2021
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF
U.S. DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31% December 2020

2020 2019

Notes UsSD usD
Income
Net gain on financia instruments at fair value through profit or loss 2 16,198,176 44,258,500
Total income 16,198,176 44,258,500
Expenses
Investment Manager fees 9 566,244 2,206,112
Administration fees 9 203,348 622,123
Sub-Custodian fees 9 219,313 669,313
Depositary fees 9 109,109 333,810
Distributors feesand Agent Security fees 9 3,267,558 9,479,595
Audit fees 23,475 32,366
Other expenses 369,116 1,024,190
Total expenses 4,758,163 14,367,509
Finance costs
Distributions 2 (11,440,013) (29,890,991)

Change in Net Assets attributabl e to Holders of Redeemable Participating
Units after distributions - -

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations.

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

U.S. DOLLAR PORTFOLIO
Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units
st
For the year ended 31~ December 2020
2020 2019
usD usb
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units at 1¥ January 2,188,849,958 1,667,742,178
Proceeds from Redeemabl e Participating Units issued 3,159,913,262 2,087,041,373
Payments for Redeemabl e Participating Units redeemed (2,495,963,806) (1,565,933,593)
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units at 3®
December 2,852,799,414 2,188,849,958

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 December 2020

GENERAL INFORMATION

Dawa Gaika MMF (the “Fund”) was constituted as an Irish domiciled unit trust, by atrust deed
dated 5" July 1996 as amended by supplemental dated 17" July 1996 and as amended and restated

on 2% January 2019. Effective 23IrOI June 2006, the duration of the Fund was extended for an
indefinite period. The Fund is an umbrella unit trust organised under and complying with the Unit
Trusts Act, 1990. The Fund was approved by the Central Bank of Ireland (the “ Central Bank”) asa

Retail Investor Alternative Investment Fund on 18th June 2015. On 21% January 2019, the
requirements of the European Union Money Market Fund Regulation (“MMFR”) came into force for

the Fund. Accordingly, on 1% January 2019, the sub-funds of the Fund were authorised by the
Central Bank as Public Debt Constant Net Asset Vaue Money Market Funds. The Fund was

approved by the Central Bank as a Retail Investor AIF CNAV MMF on 21% January 2019. A new
Prospectus has been approved by the Central Bank dated 3% July 2020.

The Fund is an umbrella fund in which different classes of units may be issued from time to time.
Each class represents interests in a fund comprising a separate and distinct portfolio of investments.
The classes of unitsin issue were U.S. Dollar Portfolio (the “ Sub-Fund”). These financial statements
relate solely to the Sub-Fund.

The Canadian Portfolio was terminated on 30th June 2020 and both the Australian Dollar Portfolio
and New Zealand Dollar Portfolio were terminated on the 30th September 2020.

The Alternative Investment Fund Manager of the Fund is SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the
“AIFM™).

The primary activity of the Sub-Fund is to preserve principal value and maintain a high degree of
liquidity while providing current income by investing in high quality fixed and floating rate debt
instruments traded on arecognised exchange listed in the Trust Deed.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies adopted by the Sub-Fund are as follows:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost
convention, as adjusted for the revaluation of financial instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss and in compliance with Irish Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (accounting standards
issued by the UK Financial Reporting Council, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “ The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and Irish law) (*FRS
102").
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Thefinancia statements have been prepared on a going concern basis of accounting. The preparation
of financial statementsin conformity with FRS 102 requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are summarised in the period in which the estimate isrevised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periodsif the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Investments
This category has two sub-categories; financial assets and liabilities held for trading, and those
designated by management at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

The Sub-Fund classifies its investments in debt securities as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. These financial assets are classified as held for trading or designated by the AIFM at
fair value through profit or loss at inception. Investments consist of short term debt obligations,
which are valued at fair value using an amortised cost technique (i.e. at their acquisition cost as
adjusted for the amortisation of premium or accretion of discount) as the best estimate of fair value.
The AIFM continuously reviews the amortised cost method to ensure that investments are stated at
their fair value.

Cash and other liquid assets are valued at their face value with coupon interest receivable accrued,
where applicable, to the end of the relevant day.

Under FRS 102, Fair Value Measurement, the Fund uses the recognition and measurement
provisions of IAS 39 Financial Instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

I nvestments (continued)

Recognition/derecognition

Regular-way purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date — the date on which
the Fund commits to purchase or sell the investment. Investments are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Fund has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Foreign Currencies

Assets and Liabilities are measured using the currency (the functional currency) of the primary
economic environment, in which the Sub-Fund operates. ThisisU.S. Dollar (“USD”). Assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into USD at the exchange rates ruling at
the year end date. Non-monetary foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities that are carried
at fair value are converted into the base currency at the date the fair values are determined. Foreign
currency gains or losses arising from trading activities are included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the year.

Foreign Currency Trandation

The Sub-Fund s unitholders are from Japan, with the subscriptions and redemptions of the
Redeemable Participating units denominated in USD. The performance of USD Portfolio is
measured and reported to the unitholdersin USD. The AIFM considers the currency as the currency
that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and
conditions of the Sub-Fund. The financial statements of USD Portfolio is presented in USD whichis
the Sub-Fund' s functional and presentation currency.

Income

Interest income is accounted for on an effective yield basis. Discounts and premiums on securities
are amortised and accreted on the effective yield basis over the life of the respective securities.
These are presented as net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or lossin the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Redeemable Participating Units

Redeemable Participating Units are redeemable at the unitholders option and are classified as
financial liabilities in accordance with FRS 102 Section 22. The Net Asset Value (“NAV”) per Unit
ismaintained at USDO0.01 through the declaration of distributions.

The Redeemabl e Participating Units can be put back into the Sub-Fund at any time for cash equal to
aproportional share of the Sub-Fund's NAV. The Redeemable Participating Unit is carried at the
redemption amount which is payable at the year end date if the unitholder expressed the right to put
the unit back in the Sub-Fund.

Dividend Policy

The AIFM declares distributions in respect of the Sub-Fund on each dealing day. The amount per
unit distributed from the Sub-Fund is a sum equal to the amount required to maintain the relevant
NAV per unit on each dealing day to 0.01 units of the currency of the Sub-Fund.

Cash Flow Statement

The Fund has availed of the exemption available to open ended investment funds under FRS 102
Section 7.1 not to prepare a cash flow statement.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The tables below show financial instruments recognised at fair value, analysed between those whose
fair value is based on:

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

those involving inputs other than quoted pricesincluded in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2); and

those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

2020 2019

Financial assets at fair vaue through profit or loss
Debt Obligations 2,419,134,130 1,824,192,484
Coupon interest receivable 341,362 249,622
2,419,475,492 1,824,442,106

All securities held by the classes are classified as Level 2. There were no significant transfers of
assets between levels for the year ended 31St December 2020 and 2019.

INVESTMENTS
The main risks arising from the Sub-Fund' s financial instruments can be summarised as follows:

Market Risk

Market risk arises from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the
potential loss the Sub-Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price
movements. Market risk comprises three types of risk: price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk.

Price Risk

Pricerisk istherisk that the fair value of the Sub-Fund's financial instruments will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices caused by factors other than interest rates or foreign currency
movement. The financial instruments of the Sub-Fund are not exposed directly to price risk.

During the year, aviral Covid-19 pandemic has spread across the globe. It is causing very significant
financial market, economic and social dislocation globally, including very significant disruption to
business and economic activity. The economic disruption may significantly reduce the value of
many financial instruments including those held by the Sub-Fund. The ultimate extent of the effect
of this on the Sub-Fund is not possible to estimate at this time and will only be finally determined on
realisation of investments.
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INVESTMENTS (continued)
Market Risk (continued)
Currency Risk

Currency risk represents the potential losses that the Sub-Fund might suffer due to adverse
movements in non-functional currency exposures. All the investments of each Class are denominated
in the functional currency of the relevant Class with the effect that the Statement of Financial
Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income will not be significantly affected by currency

movements.

Interest Rate Risk

Therisk isdefined as therisk that the fair value of afinancial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The risk arises on financial instruments whose fair value is affected

by changes in interest rates.

The tables below and overleaf summarise the Sub-Fund's exposure to interest rate risks at the end of
the year. It includes the Sub-Fund's assets and trading liabilities at fair value, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates:

2020

Assets

Cash including fixed deposits
Debtors

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Totd assets

Liabilities (excluding Net Assets
atributabl e to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units)
Creditors

Total liabilities

Totd Interest Sensitivity Gap

Non -

Lessthan 1-3 Over interest
1 Month Months 3 Months bearing Tota
usD usD usD usD usD
407,204,928 407,204,928
- 34,030,181 34,030,181
625,307,406 1,624,505,673 169,662,413 2,419,475,492
1,032,512,334 1,624,505,673 169,662,413 34,030,181 2,860,710,601
7,911,187 7,911,187
- - - 7,911,187 7,911,187
1,032,512,334 1,624,505,673 169,662,413 N/A N/A
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INVESTMENTS (continued)
Market Risk (continued)
Interest Rate Risk (continued)
Non -
Lessthan 1-3 Over interest

2019 1 Month Months 3 Months bearing Total

usD usD usD usD usD
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 358,198,001 - - - 358,198,001
Debtors - - - 18,707,950 18,707,950
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 623,370,541 1,061,758,051 139,313,514 - 1,824,442,106
Totd assets 981,568,542 1,061,758,051 139,313,514 18,707,950 2,201,348,057
Liabilities (excluding Net Assets
attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units)
Creditors - - - 12,498,099 12,498,099
Tota liabilities - - - 12,498,099 12,498,099
Tota Interest Sensitivity Gap 981,568,542 1,061,758,051 139,313,514 N/A N/A

The benchmark rate for determining interest receipts for the floating rate investments is based on

LIBOR for the Sub-Fund plus or minus specified basis points.

A weekly mark to market evaluation is carried out by the Investment Manager. Separately from this
test, the Investment Manager independently runs at least weekly mark to market evaluations; this
includes a stress test worked out against ayield curve change (currently the Investment Manager sets

a 25 basis points and a 50 basis points parallel interest curve rise).

The tables below shows the percentage effect to the unit price where market rates move between

minus 10 basis points and plus 50 basis points:

2020 +50bps +25bps +6.25bps -10bps
USD Portfolio -0.06% -0.03% -0.01% 0.01%
(+6.25 basis points provides pricing based on Bid price)

2019 +50bps +25bps +6.25bps -10bps
USD Portfolio -0.06% -0.03% -0.01% 0.01%
(+6.25 basis points provides pricing based on Bid price)
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INVESTMENTS (continued)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk represents the possibility that the Sub-Fund may not be able to rapidly adjust the size
of itsinvestment position in times of high volatility and financial stress at areasonable price. The
Sub-Fund isinvested in assets, which are realisable and overnight cash balances of around 15% are
normally retained, which are increased for known outflows and during market disruption. The
Investment Adviser contact distributors on afrequent basisin order to obtain information on
potential sizable redemptions. In times of market disruption realising assets may become more
difficult, when thisis observed it is monitored and where necessary maturities are shortened and
overnight cash isincreased.

The AIFM shall establish, implement and consistently apply prudent and rigorous liquidity
management procedures for ensuring compliance with the weekly liquidity thresholds applicable to
the Sub-Fund. In ensuring compliance with the weekly liquidity thresholds, where weekly maturing
assetsfall below (i) 30% of the NAV of the relevant Sub-Fund and the net daily redemptions on a
single dealing day exceed 10% or (ii) 10% of the Fund's NAV, the AIFM shall be immediately
informed and the AIFM shall undertake a documented assessment to determine the appropriate
course of action with regard to the interests of the Unitholders of that Sub-Fund to decide whether to
apply one or more of the measures permitted under the MMF Regulation.

The liquidity risk table below analyse the Sub-Fund's financia assetsinto relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the year end date to the contractual maturity date:

2020 2019
Cash 14.41% 16.41%
2-7 days 4.60% 4.10%
8-30 days 17.51% 20.33%
31-90 days 57.48% 52.77%
91-180 days 6.00% 6.39%
181-365 days 0.00% 0.00%
Over 365 days 0.00% 0.00%
Cash payable 0.00% 0.00%

All financia liabilities are due within 1 month.
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INVESTMENTS (continued)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is measured by the loss the Sub-Fund would incur if its counterparties failed to perform
pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Sub-Fund. The Sub-Fund is exposed to credit risk on
parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement default. The Sub-Fund selects
only established counterparties that have sufficient experience, knowledge and creditworthiness. All
transactions in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of
default is considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has
received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the
broker. All of the cash held on overnight deposit is held with a carefully selected list of banks.
Bankruptcy or insolvency by abank may cause the Sub-Fund' s rights with respect to the cash held
on deposit to be delayed or limited. The Investment Manager monitors the credit rating of these
banks, as reported by S& P Global and Moody’s.

The Sub-Fund is also exposed to credit risk from term issuance invested in, resulting from a
borrower’s failure to meet their contractual obligations. There can be no assurance that issuers of the
securities or other instruments in which the Sub-Fund invests will not be subject to credit difficulties
leading to the loss of some or all of the sumsinvested in such securities or instruments or payments
due on such securities or instruments.

SMT Trustees (Ireland) Limited as Depositary has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
(London Branch) asiits custodian (the “Custodian™). Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London
Branch) have, in turn, appointed Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH & Co.”), astheir sub-
custodian (the “ Sub-Custodian”). BBH & Co. has aFitch credit rating of A+ at the year end (2019:
A+). The investments and cash of the Sub-Fund were held by the Sub-Custodian at the year end,
except where cash was placed in the Cash Management Sweep (“CMS’). Bankruptcy or insolvency
of the Custodian or Sub-Custodian may have caused the Sub-Fund's rights with respect to its
investments in debt securities held by the Custodian or Sub-Custodian to be delayed or limited. The
Sub-Fund's securities were maintained by the Sub-Custodian in segregated accounts. Thusin the
event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Sub-Custodian, the Sub-Fund' s assets were segregated. The
Sub-Fund would, however, been exposed to the credit risk of the Sub-Custodian, the CMS
counterparties, or any depository used by the Custodian, in relation to the Sub-Fund's cash. In the
event of theinsolvency or bankruptcy of the Sub-Custodian, any of the CM S counterparties, or any
depository used by the Custodian, the Sub-Fund would have been treated as a general creditor of
such entity in relation to cash holdings of the Sub-Fund.
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INVESTMENTS (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)
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Any overnight cash balances held in the Collection Account (* Collection Account”), including prior
to being invested in a Portfolio or being paid out to unitholdersin relation to repurchases of Units,
may have been the subject of a cash sweep program (the “ Collection Account Cash Sweep
Program”). The Collection Account Cash Sweep Program involved placing such moniesinto one or
more omnibus client accounts held with third party counterparties which have a credit rating of ‘A’
or above at least by S& P, Moody’s or Fitch (* Collection Account Cash Sweep Counterparties’).
Unitholders should note that, as aresult of the Collection Account Cash Sweep Program, unitholders
would have counterparty exposure to the Collection Account Cash Sweep Counterparties.
“Collection Account” means the account operated by the AIFM which was used for (i) the receipt of
subscription monies from investors to the Sub-Fund, and (ii) repayment of redemption and/or
distribution proceeds to unitholders.

Aninvestment universe which lists all the rating eligible securities that the Sub-Fund hastraded in is
maintained and monitored to record ratings changes by Moody’s or S& P Global.

2020 2019
Aaa 42.27% 37.45%
Aal 23.52% 25.63%
Aa2 22.28% 23.05%
Aa3 1.33% 9.29%
Al 10.60% 4.58%
A2 0.00% 0.00%
Cash payable 0.00% 0.00%
The tables below show the percentages of security type held by the Sub-Fund:

2020 2019
Cash 14.41% 16.41%
Cash payable 0.00% 0.00%
Certificate of Deposit 0.00% 0.00%
Commercia Paper 83.61% 82.00%
Corporate Bonds 0.00% 0.00%
T-Bill 0.00% 0.00%
Bank Acceptance 0.00% 0.00%
Bank Deposit Notes 0.00% 0.00%
Promissory Note 0.00% 0.00%

Bonds

1.98%
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INVESTMENTS (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)

All gaing/(losses) from trading in investment for the years ended 31% December 2020 and 2019 are
included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

CASH INCLUDING FIXED DEPOSITS

Cash balances are held with the Sub-Custodian except when placed in the CM S or when placed on
deposit with a separate credit institution. The CM S involves placing monies into one or more
omnibus client accounts held with third party counterparties. As aresult of the CMS a portfolio will
have counterparty exposure to the CMS Counterparties. Cash balances and fixed deposits are
detailed in Note 4.

The Sub-Fund has agreed in certain limited circumstances to subscribe to the Sub-Custodian’s Cash
Management Service to invest available USD demand deposit balances and uncommitted foreign
currency denominated demand deposit balances in unrestricted overnight deposit instrumentsin one
of the approved financial institutions. Money is held in these accounts temporarily and only for short
periods when money is being wired from investors to the Sub-Fund for contributions, when money
for redemptions is being wired from the Sub-Fund or when fees are being paid out of the Sub-Fund
to recognised third party vendors.

Such deposits may be subject to both sovereign actionsin the jurisdiction of the deposit institution
and sovereign actionsin the jurisdiction of the currency, including but not limited to freeze, seizure,
or diminution. In any case, the risk associated with the repayment of principal and payment of
interest on such instruments by the institution with whom the deposit is ultimately placed will be
exclusively for the Sub-Fund' s accounts. All cash was held by the Sub-Custodian at the year end,
except if placed in the CMS.

DEBTORS
2020 2019
UsD uUsD
Receivable for fund units sold 34,030,181 18,707,950

34,030,181 18,707,950
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CREDITORS
2020 2019
usD usbh
Payable for fund units repurchased 7,150,472 8,428,973
Fees payable (Note 9) 715,218 3,584,176
Distribution payable 45,497 484,950
7,911,187 12,498,099

REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITSISSUED AND REDEEMED DURING THE
YEAR

2020 2019
Opening Outstanding Units 218,884,984,696 166,774,205,867
Number of Unitsissued 315,991,326,167 208,704,137,353
Number of Units redeemed (249,596,378,887) (156,593,358,524)
Closing Outstanding Units 285,279,931,976 218,884,984,696

FEES AND EXPENSES

The Sub-Fund pays afee to the AIFM and the Depositary, the aggregate of which islessthan 1% per
annum of the NAV of the Sub-Fund. Thisfeeis payable quarterly in arrears and is accrued on a
daily basis, save in respect of that portion of the AIFM’s fee which is payable to the Investment
Manager, which portion of the fee shall accrue daily and be payable twice per quarter. The
Investment Manager remunerates the Investment Adviser. The Agent Securities Company as well as
the Distributors are reimbursed their out-of-pocket expenses directly out of the administration
expenses of the relevant Portfolio. The Sub-Fund also reimburses the AIFM all of its administration
expenses.

The Depositary isrepaid its disbursements out of the Sub-Fund, which includes the fees and
disbursements of any sub-custodian.

The AIFM pays out of the fees received by it from the Sub-Fund, the fees of the Investment
Manager, the Distributor and the Agent Company.
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FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

Fees payable at the year end are asfollows:

2020 2019

usbD usb

Investment Manager fees 11,706 238,556
Administration fees 26,131 181,793
Sub-Custodian fees 28,044 195,582
Depositary fees 14,020 97,544
Distributors fees and Agent Security fees 390,956 2,644,237
Audit fees 24,540 33,980
Other expenses 219,821 192,484
715,218 3,684,176

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business. The
Administrator, Depositary, Investment Manager, Investment Adviser and Distributor/Agent
Company are deemed to be related parties under FRS 102. Fees incurred with related parties during
the year are disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Amounts payable to related
parties at the year end are disclosed in Note 9.

In accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank AIF Rulebook, all transactions carried out
with the Fund by the AIFM, Depositary and Investment Manager or by delegates or group
companies (“connected parties’) must be carried out as if negotiated at arm’s length and be in the
best interests of unitholders. The AIFM is satisfied that there are arrangements in place (evidenced
by written procedures) to ensure that the obligations set out above are applied to al transactions with
connected parties and transactions with connected parties entered into during the year complied with
the obligations.

The number of investors that held more than 20% of the Net Assets attributable to Redeemable

Participating Unitholders at trading valuation of the Fund at the year end 31% December 2020 is 2
(2019: 2). Included in this number is Daiwa Securities Co. Limited, the Fund's Distributor in Japan.

NAV HISTORY

2020 2019 2018
USD Portfolio
NAV USD2,852,799,414 USD2,188,849,958 USD1,667,742,178
Number of Units 285,279,931,976 218,884,984,696 166,774,205,867

NAV  per Unit uSDO0.01 USDO0.01 uSDO0.01
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TAXATION

Under current law and practice, the Fund qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in
Section 739B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. The Fund is not chargeable to Irish
tax on itsincome or capital gains. However, Irish tax can arise on the happening of a*chargeable
event” in the Fund. A chargeable event includes any distribution payments to unitholders or any
encashment, redemption or transfer of units. No tax will arise in respect of chargeable events in
respect of a unitholder who is an Exempt Irish Investor (as defined in Section 739D of the Taxes
Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended) or who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in
Ireland for tax purposes at the time of the chargeable event, provided, in each case, that an
appropriate valid declaration in accordance with Schedule 2B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997
(as amended) is held by the Fund. Capital gains, dividends and coupon interest received by the Fund
may be subject to withholding taxes imposed by the country of origin and such taxes may not be
recoverable by the Fund or its Unitholders.

SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS
The Sub-Fund does not have any soft commission arrangements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to 31% December 2020 and up to 20th April 2021 there were subscriptions of
USD1,094,967,903 into the Sub-Fund and redemptions of USD1,186,904,469 from the Sub-Fund.

As at the date the financial statements were available to be issued, uncertainty still remains around
the length of the disruption of COVID-19 and the impact on global markets.

There were no other events subsequent to the year end to the date the financial statements were
approved, which require disclosure in the financial statements.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of the AIFM on 20th April 2021.
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st
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Far
Nominal Vaue % of
Debt Obligations Holding usD NAV
Austria (2019: 0.50%)
Austria Republic of 0.18% 19-Jan-21 50,000,000 49,996,252 1.75
Austria Republic of 0.19% 16-Feb-21 20,000,000 19,995,463 0.70
Austria Republic of 0.22% 16-Feb-21 70,000,000 69,981,612 2.46
Austria Republic of 0.21% 06-Apr-21 50,000,000 49,973,196 175
189,946,523 6.66
Finland (2019: 6.58%)
Municipality Finance Pic 0.18% 12-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,998,800 1.05
Municipality Finance Plc 0.19% 08-Feb-21 40,000,000 39,992,616 1.40
Municipality Finance Plc 0.19% 12-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,993,666 1.05
Municipality Finance Plc 0.24% 08-Mar-21 40,000,000 39,983,210 1.40
Municipality Finance Plc 0.19% 22-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,989,849 0.88
Municipality Finance Plc 0.25% 23-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,986,467 0.88
Municipality Finance Plc 0.22% 06-Apr-21 20,000,000 19,988,764 0.70
209,933,372 7.36
France (2019: 16.96%)
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.22% 04-Jan-21 60,000,000 60,000,000 211
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.23% 28-Jan-21 50,000,000 49,992,340 1.75
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.25% 29-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,994,848 1.05
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.23% 16-Feb-21 5,000,000 4,998,628 0.18
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.24% 16-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,991,405 1.05
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.23% 26-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,989,850 1.05
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.25% 26-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,989,144 1.05
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.24% 16-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,985,871 1.05
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.21% 22-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,986,280 1.05
Caisse Des Depos ET Consignations 0.17% 08-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,995,044 1.05
Caisse Des Depos ET Consignations 0.18% 24-Feb-21 60,000,000 59,984,712 2.10
Caisse Des Depos ET Consignations 0.20% 10-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,989,174 1.05
Caisse Des Depos ET Consignations 0.22% 18-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,988,855 0.88
Caisse Des Depos ET Consignations 0.22% 22-Mar-21 50,000,000 49,976,490 1.75
Caisse Des Depos ET Consignations 0.21% 01-Apr-21 30,000,000 29,984,786 1.05
Caisse Des Depos ET Consignations 0.20% 19-Apr-21 40,000,000 39,976,682 1.40

559,824,109 19.62
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Schedule of Investments
st
31" December 2020
(Continued)
Fair

Nominal Vdue % of
Debt Obligations (continued) Holding usb NAV
Germany (2019: 41.98%)
FM S Wertmanagement 0.23% 12-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,998,468 1.05
FM S Wertmanagement 0.23% 12-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,998,501 1.05
FM S Wertmanagement 0.20% 19-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,997,564 1.05
FMS Wertmanagement 0.19% 01-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,995,685 1.05
FM S Wertmanagement 0.20% 01-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,995,335 1.05
FM S Wertmanagement 0.20% 01-Feb-21 50,000,000 49,992,419 1.75
FM S Wertmanagement 0.19% 26-Feb-21 40,000,000 39,988,819 1.40
FM S Wertmanagement 0.24% 03-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,988,648 1.05
FM S Wertmanagement 0.23% 05-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,990,422 0.88
KFW 0.19% 06-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,999,683 1.05
KFW 0.20% 08-Jan-21 35,000,000 34,999,222 1.23
KFW 0.20% 01-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,992,229 0.88
Land Nordrhein-Westfalen FRN 29-Jan-21 25,000,000 25,001,269 0.88
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.22% 04-Jan-21 40,000,000 40,000,000 1.40
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.22% 08-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,999,268 1.05
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.22% 12-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,998,535 1.05
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.21% 19-Jan-21 30,000,000 29,997,376 1.05
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.19% 02-Feb-21 35,000,000 34,994,646 1.23
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.20% 16-Feb-21 50,000,000 49,988,064 1.75
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.20% 16-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,992,838 1.05
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.21% 16-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,992,480 1.05
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.20% 19-Feb-21 10,000,000 9,997,446 0.35
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.18% 01-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,991,605 1.05
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.21% 01-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,990,441 1.05
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.21% 24-Mar-21 50,000,000 49,976,974 1.75
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.21% 26-Mar-21 8,000,000 7,996,313 0.28
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.22% 30-Mar-21 35,000,000 34,981,833 1.23
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.28% 23-Apr-21 25,000,000 24,978,826 0.88
Landwirtschaft Rentenbank 0.19% 14-Jan-21 35,000,000 34,998,154 1.23
Landwirtschaft Rentenbank 0.19% 15-Jan-21 40,000,000 39,997,680 1.40
Landwirtschaft Rentenbank 0.20% 15-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,990,040 0.88
NRW Bank 0.21% 05-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,989,508 1.05
NRW Bank 0.21% 09-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,988,807 1.05

NRW Bank 0.21% 12-Mar-21 50,000,000 49,980,472 175
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(Continued)
Far
Nominal Vaue % of
Debt Obligations (continued) Holding usb NAV
Germany (2019: 41.98%) (continued)
NRW Bank 0.21% 16-Mar-21 50,000,000 49,979,306 175
Saxony-Anhalt 0.23% 09-Mar-21 35,000,000 34,985,696 123
Saxony-Anhalt 0.28% 11-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,987,176 0.88
1,192,711,748 41.81
Netherlands (2019: 5.70%)
BNG Bank NV 0.19% 28-Apr-21 4,724,000 4,760,159 0.17
4,760,159 0.17
Supranationa (2019: 5.77%)
EBRD 0.19% 18-Mar-21 90,000,000 89,961,714 3.15
Eurofima 0.23% 19-Jan-21 20,000,000 19,998,084 0.70
109,959,798 3.85
Sweden (2019: 5.85%)
City of Gothenburg 0.21% 10-Feb-21 36,000,000 35,992,237 1.26
City of Gothenburg 0.21% 25-Feb-21 5,000,000 4,998,484 0.18
City of Gothenburg 0.20% 11-Mar-21 30,000,000 29,989,007 1.05
City of Gothenburg 0.21% 25-Mar-21 25,000,000 24,988,342 0.88
Kommuninvest | Sverige 0.20% 01-Mar-21 25,930,000 26,036,840 0.91
Sweden Kingdom of 0.20% 11-Feb-21 30,000,000 29,993,511 1.05
151,998,421 5.33
Coupon interest receivable (2019: 0.01%) 341,362 0.01

Total Debt Obligations (2019: 83.35%) 2,419,475,492 84.81
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Schedule of Portfolio Movements (Unaudited)
31% December 2020

Acquisitions Disposals

Nominal Nomina

Acoss (Agence Central) 0.61% 11-May-20 50,000,000 -
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.30% 28-Aug-20 50,000,000 -
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.35% 28-Sep-20 70,000,000 -
Acoss (Agence Central) 0.22% 04-Jan-21 60,000,000 -
Austria Republic of 0.18% 19-Jan-21 50,000,000 -
Austria Republic of 0.22% 16-Feb-21 70,000,000 -
Caisse Des Depos Et Consignations C 0.18% 24-Feb-21 60,000,000 -
Caisse Des Depos Et Consignations 0.22% 22-Mar-21 50,000,000 -
Council of Europe Development Bank 0.17% 09-Nov-20 53,000,000 -
EBRD 0.19% 18-Mar-21 90,000,000 -
FM S Wertmanagement 0.22% 12-Nov-20 50,000,000 -
FM S Wertmanagement 0.17% 30-Nov-20 50,000,000 -
FMS Wertmanagement 0.20% 01-Feb-21 50,000,000 -
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.20% 16-Feb-21 50,000,000 -
Landeskreditbk Baden-Wuertt Foerdbank 0.21% 24-Mar-21 50,000,000 -
Ned Waterschapsbank 0.44% 22-Jul-20 100,000,000 -
Ned Waterschapsbank 0.19% 24-Nov-20 75,000,000 -
NRW Bank 0.21% 12-Mar-21 50,000,000 -
NRW Bank 0.21% 16-Mar-21 50,000,000 -
Saxony-Anhalt 0.27% 15-Sep-20 50,000,000 -

The above represents the statement of changes in the composition of the portfolio during the year, as
required by the Central Bank of Ireland. This shows the largest 20 acquisitionsin the year. It is not
intended to provide areconciliation between holdings at the beginning of the year and holdings at the end
of the year.

Note: There were no disposals of investments in the year. All investments mature in the normal course of
business.
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(2021 )
( )
2,707,802,119.17 294,960,885
490,758.14 53,458
2,707,311,361.03 294,907,427
270,731,136,103
0.01 1
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€Y
40
2021 40 ( 6,018 ) 6,250
( 82 4,938 )
2016 25 40 6,250
2017 40 6,250
2018 40 6,250
2019 40 6,250
2020 40 6,250

@
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2021 MMF (
2,871,653,246.15 106,008,574,246 1,538,874,043.02 )

2,707,311,361.03

164,341,885.12

106,008,574 ,246

1,538,874,043.02
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2021 30 UFJ
131.99
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2020 30 2019 30

( ) « ) ( ) « )
3,808,308 502,659 2,907,246 383,727
624,106 82,376 508,744 67,149
4,432,414 585,034 3,415,990 450,877
7,087,874 935,528 8,681,199 1,145,831
29,278,295 3,864,442 24,983,278 3,297,543
36,366,169 4,799,971 33,664,477 4,443,374
10 (5,889,429) (777,346) (4,625,022) (610,457)
30,476,740 4,022,625 29,039,455 3,832,918
34,909,154 4,607,659 32,455,445 4,283,794
11 62,992,338 8,314,359 62,992,338 8,314,359
12 4,050,000 534,560 4,050,000 534,560
118,389 15,626 (239,589) (31,623)
(32,251,573) (4,256,885) (34,347,304) (4,533,501)
34,909,154 4,607,659 32,455,445 4,283,794

2021 26
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2020 30 2019 30
( ) « ) ( ) « )
30,796,780 4,064,867 27,148,217 3,583,293
(28,671,314) (3,784,327) (27,048,813) (3,570,173)
2,125,466 280,540 99,404 13,120
(32,172) (4,246) (4,838) (639)
2,003,294 276,294 94,566 12,482
2,437 322 (17,930) (2,367)
2,095,731 276,616 76,636 10,115
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2020 30 2019 30
2,095,731 276,616 76,636 10,115
409,118 53,999 (198,446) (26,193)
(51,140) (6,750) 24,806 3,274
357,978 47,250 (173,640) (22,919)
2,453,709 323,865 (97,004) (12,804)
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4,050,000 (239,589)  (34,347,304) 32,455,445
2,095,731 2,095,731

357,978 357,978

357,978 2,005,731 2,453,709

4,050,000 118,389  (32,251,573) 34,909,154
4,050,000 (65,949)  (34,423,940) 32,552,449
76,636 76,636

(173,640) (173,640)

(173,640) 76,636 (97,004)

4,050,000 (239,589)  (34,347,304) 32,455,445
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2020 30

102

102
102 26
2014 39 102 11
102 12

102 102
2014
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2019 31
2019

405

2013 2013

2016 25
3,400 3,400
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2020 30 2019 30
18,197,043 17,521,382
10,474,271 9,527,431
28,671,314 27,048,813

2020 30 2019 30
13,270,915 13,699,704

1,472,961 1,455,274
886,575 737,773
2,566,592 1,628,631
18,197,043 17,521,382

215 2019 219

SMTTIL
2020 30 2019 30

106,000 148,000
790,276 769,431
43,849 98
23,000 23,000
6,050 7,100
81,773 74,317
322,438 348,688
577,613 1,927,411
1,143,479 1,164,753
69,231 60,535
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2020 30 2019 30
3,224 8,838
(5,661) 9,002
(2,437) 17,930
2020 30 2019 30
51,140 (24,806)
2020 30 2019 30
2,093,294 94,566
2019 261,661 11,821
(114,536) 85,198
627 745
7,246 9,443
(157,435) (89,277)
(2,437) 17,930
71,502 67,924
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2020 30
2019 30 9,669,143 9,669,143
1,478,675 1,478,675
2020 30 11,147,818 11,147,818
2019 30 6,761,897 6,761,897
577,613 577,613
2020 30 7,339,510 7,339,510
2020 30 3,808,308 3,808,308
2019 30
2018 30 7,804,061 7,804,061
1,865,082 1,865,082
2019 30 9,669,143 9,669,143
2018 30 4,834,486 4,834,486
1,927,411 1,927,411
2019 30 6,761,897 6,761,897
2019 30 2,907,246 2,907,246
Advent Geneva and Paladyne
2019 Vermillion

Paladyne, NTAS
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2020 30
2019 30 1,495,299 1,550,749 3,731,193 6,777,241
16,669 54,666 366,465 437,800
(132,545) (905,910) (1,820,413) (2,858,868)
2020 30 1,379,423 699,505 2,277,245 4,356,173
2019 30 1,326,131 1,482,813 3,459,553 6,268,497
51,349 65,765 205,324 322,438
(132,545) (905,910) (1,820,413) (2,858,868)
2020 30 1,244,935 642,668 1,844,464 3,732,067
2020 30 134,488 56,837 432,781 624,106
2019 30
2018 30 1,350,366 1,542,471 3,617,563 6,510,400
144,933 8,278 113,630 266,841
2019 30 1,495,299 1,550,749 3,731,193 6,777,241
2018 30 1,294,609 1,399,144 3,226,056 5,919,809
31,522 83,669 233,497 348,688
2019 30 1,326,131 1,482,813 3,459,553 6,268,497
2019 30 169,168 67,936 271,640 508,744
2020 30 2019 30
3,685,620 3,531,521
1,343,841 1,080,852
229,155 97,726
165,687 19,702
1,654,644 3,896,992
8,927 54,406
7,087,874 8,681,199
4,526,633 2019 4,813,762
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2020 30 2019 30
5,148,262 3,838,641
24,130,033 21,144,637
29,278,295 24,983,278

2020 30 2019 30
3,396,873 2,565,388
3,224 8,838
9,787 992
1,243,791 505,917
3,131 266,264
821,593 821,593
411,030 456,030
5,889,429 4,625,022

PAYE 2019 295,391 168,031
65,391 2019 54,073

2020 30 2019 30
492,338 492,338
62,500,000 62,500,000
62,992,338 62,992,338

50,000,000 100,000,000 2016
3,400

2020 30 2019 30
4,050,000 4,050,000
4,050,000 4,050,000
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405
2013
2020 30 2019
822,476 55,952 1,011,161 20,071
2,835,564 63,148 3,744,244 168,260
614,899 2,800,394
4,272,939 119,100 7,555,799 188,331
2020 30 2019 30
886,575 737,773
66,502 64,806
102 33
100 8233
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2,035,000

480,000,000

40,000

£2,127,500

2019

363,218
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COVID-19
COVID-19
COVID-19
30
€1,778,445 €51,974 €51,974
€3,948,410 €76,918 €76,918
€24,316 (€84) (€84)
€2,370,239 €36,795 (€3,047) €33,748
€165, 687 (€3,131) €162,556
2020 12 2021 30
96,866
€165,687 €165,687
€165,687 €165,687
€3,047 €3,047
€3,047 €3,047
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2019 30
2,100,000 €1,812,839 (€81,979) (€81,979)
450,000,000 €3,664,205 (€151,432) (€151,432)
160,000 €97,016 €72 (€1,014) (€942)

£2,275,000 €2,537,645 €19,630 (€31,839) (€12,209)
€19,702 (€266, 264) (€246,562)
2019 12 2020 30
363,218
2018 157,530
€19,702 €19,702
€19,702 €19,702
€266,264 €266,264
€266,264 €266,264
19 2014
2014 357
357 2020 30
20
2021 26
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of financial position
as at 30 September 2020

Note 30 September 30 September
2020 2019
€ €
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 6 3,808,308 2,907,246
Tangible fixed assets 7 624,106 508,744
4,432,414 3,415,990
Current assets
Debtors 8 7,087,874 8,681,199
Cash at bank and in hand 9 29,278,295 24,983,278
36,366,169 33,664,477
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 10 (5,889,429) (4,625,022)
Net current assets 30,476,740 29,039,455
Net assets 34,909,154 32,455,445
Capita and reserves
Called up share capital 11 62,992,338 62,992,338
Additional paid in capital 12 4,050,000 4,050,000
Cash flow hedge reserve 118,389 (239,589)
Profit and loss account (32,251,573) (34,347,304)
Total shareholders funds 34,909,154 32,455,445
The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of financial position.
On behalf of the board
Director Director 26 January 2021

Keiji Nakamura Peter Callaghan
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Income statement
for the year ended 30 September 2020

30 September 30 September

Note 2020 2019

€ €

Turnover 30,796,780 27,148,217

Administrative expenses 3 (28,671,314) (27,048,813)
Profit on ordinary activities before interest and

taxation 2,125,466 99,404

Interest (expense) (32,172) (4,838)

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 4 2,093,294 94,566

Taxation on ordinary activities 5 2,437 (17,930)

Profit for the year 2,095,731 76,636

All results have been generated by continuing operations.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of this income statement.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of other comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 September 2020

Note 30 September 30 September
2020 2019
€ €
Profit for the year 2,095,731 76,636
Other comprehensive income
Effective portion of changesin fair value of
cash flow hedges 18 409,118 (198,446)
Income tax on other comprehensive income 5 (51,140) 24,806
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of income tax 357,978 (173,640)

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,453,709 (97,004)
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 September 2020

Cdledup Additiona Cashflow Profit
share paidin hedging and loss Totd
capital Capital reserve account equity
€ € € € €
Balance at 1 October 2019 62,992,338 4,050,000 (239,589) (34,347,304) 32,455,445
Total comprehensive income for
the period
Profit / (Loss) for the year - - - 2095731 2,095,731
Other comprehensive income for
the period - - 357,978 - 357,978
Total comprehensive income for
the period - - 357,978 2,095,731 2,453,709
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity
Issue of Shares - - - - -
Tota contributions by and
distributions to owners - - - - -
Balance at 30 September 2020 62,992,338 4,050,000 118,389 (32,251,573) 34,909,154
Cadledup Additiona  Cashflow Profit
share paidin hedging and loss Totd
capital Capital reserve account equity
€ € € € €
Balance at 1 October 2018 62,992,338 4,050,000 (65,949) (34,423,940) 32,552,449
Total comprehensive income for
the period
Profit / (Loss) for the year - - - 76,636 76,636
Other comprehensive income for
the period - - (173,640) - (173,640)
Total comprehensive income for
the period - - (173,640) 76,636 (97,004)
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity
Issue of Shares - - - - -
Tota contributions by and
distributions to owners - - - - -
Balance at 30 September 2019 62,992,338 4,050,000 (239,589) (34,347,304) 32,455,445
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020

1 Accounting Policies

SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Company”) with a registered office at Block 5, Harcourt
Centre, Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, is a private company limited by shares and incorporated and domiciled in
Ireland.

The functional and presentation currency of these financial statementsis Euro.

The Company’s immediate parent undertaking, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited includes the
Company in its consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements of Sumitomo
Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited are available to the public and may be obtained from Block 5, Harcourt
Centre, Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, Ireland.

In these financial statements, the company is considered to be a qualifying entity (for the purposes of this
FRS) and has applied the exemptions available under FRS 102 in respect of the following disclosures:
Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding from the beginning to end of the period,;
Cash Flow Statement and rel ated notes; and
Key Management Personnel compensation.

As the consolidated financial statements of the Company’s ultimate parent, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Holdings Inc. include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has also taken the exemptions under FRS
102 available in respect of the following disclosures:
Certain disclosures required by FRS 102.26 Share Based Payments; and,
The disclosures required by FRS 102.11 Basic Financial Instruments and FRS 102.12 Other
Financial Instrument Issues in respect of financia instruments not falling within the fair value
accounting rules of Schedule 3, paragraph 39 of the Companies Act 2014.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

1  Accounting Policies— (continued)
The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company are as follows:
Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 (*’ FRS 102’
') The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland and issued by the
Financial Reporting Council, and promulgated for use in Ireland by Chartered Accountants Ireland. The
Company is aso subject to the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

The financia statements are prepared under the historical cost basis except for the modification to a fair
value basis for certain financia instruments as specified in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expense (e.g. useful economic life). The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the periods in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis.

Turnover and Administration Expenses

Turnover comprises fee income from administration and management services, which is accounted for on
an accruals basis. It also includes income earned from the recharge of services to other group companies.

Turnover and administration expenses are shown exclusive of amounts paid to other service providers. All
amounts are charged at normal commercial rates.
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Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

1  Accounting Policies— (continued)

Foreign Currencies

The financial statements are expressed in Euro (€), which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at rates
which approximate the rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Share capital istrandated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of itsissue.

Profits and losses arising from currency translation and on settlement of amounts receivable and payable in
foreign currencies are dealt with in the income statement.

Basic Financia Instruments

Trade and other debtors / creditors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at transaction price plus attributable transaction costs.
Trade and other creditors are recognised initially at transaction price less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses in the case of trade debtors.

Cash

Cash comprises cash at bank and in hand. Term deposits have maturities of 1 to 3 years, and are repayable
on demand

149/265



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159

SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

1  Accounting Policies— (continued)
Other financial instruments
Financial instruments not considered to be Basic financial instruments (Other financial instruments)

Other financial instruments not meeting the definition of Basic Financial Instruments are recognised
initialy at fair value. Subseguent to initial recognition other financial instruments are measured at fair
value with changes recognised in income statement except as follows:

-investments in equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be
measured reliably shall be measured at cost |ess impairment; and

-hedging instruments in a designated hedging relationship shall be recognised as set out below.
Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in income statement. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge
accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged (see
below).

Cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedges are used to cover the Company’s exposure to variahility in cash flows that is attributable
to particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment which could affect
income or expenses. Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in
cash flows of a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part of
any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in Other comprehensive
income (“OCI™). Any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised immediately in income statement.

For cash flow hedges, where the forecast transactions resulted in the recognition of a non-financial asset or
non-financial liability, the hedging gain or loss recognised in OCI is included in the initial cost or other
carrying amount of the asset or liability. Alternatively when the hedged item is recognised in income
statement the hedging gain or loss is reclassified to income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity discontinues
designation of the hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity and is recognised in accordance with the above
policy when the transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised in the income statement immediately.
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Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

1  Accounting Policies— (continued)
Taxation

Tax on the income statement for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences which arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in
tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.
The following timing differences are not provided for: differences between accumulated depreciation and
tax allowances for the cost of afixed asset if and when all conditions for retaining the tax allowances have
been met, to the extent that it is not probable that they will reverse in the foreseeable future and the
reporting entity is able to control the reversal of the timing difference. Deferred tax is not recognised on
permanent differences arising because certain types of income or expense are non-taxable or are
disallowable for tax or because certain tax charges or alowances are greater or smaller than the
corresponding income or expense.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the reversal of the related difference,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax balances are not
discounted.

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that is it probable that
they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

A deferred tax asset is recorded where it is more likely than not to be recoverable. The recoverability of
deferred tax assetsis assessed annually by the directors.
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Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

1  Accounting Policies— (continued)
Intangible assets

Research and devel opment
Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities may be capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercialy feasible and the Company intends and has the technica ability and sufficient resources to
complete devel opment, future economic benefits are probable and if the Company can measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development. Development activities involve the
design, construction or testing of the production of new or substantially improved products or processes.
The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and capitalised borrowing costs. Other development expenditure is recognised in the income
statement as an expense as incurred. Capitalised devel opment expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and less accumul ated impairment |osses.

Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is charged in equal instalments on the cost of assets over their expected useful lives and is
included within administration costs.

Software 3 years (up to 31 July 2019)
Software 7 years (from 1 August 2019)

Asset values are closely monitored and are subject to provisions for impairment where necessary. Assetsin
the course of development are not amortised until they are brought into use.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is charged in equal instalments on
the cost of assets over their expected useful lives and isincluded within administration costs.

Furniture and equipment 5years
Software 3years
Mainframe Equipment 3years
Personal Computers 2 years
Computer Terminals 3years
Fund administration system 3years

Asset values are closely monitored and are subject to provisions for impairment where necessary.
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Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

1  Accounting Policies— (continued)
Employee benefits

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for employees. Obligations for contributions
to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement when they are
due.

Additiondl paid in capital

Subordinated Loans of €4.05 million previously received from the Company’s parent, that are non-interest
bearing and repayable at the Company’s discretion, were reclassified as capital during 2013, after areview
of their terms and conditions, and the receipt during 2013 of confirmation from the Company’s parent and
that these amounts are repayable solely at the volition of the Company and that the Company’s parent will
not demand repayment of these amounts.

2  Ownership and operations

The Company, which is engaged in the provision of administration and management company services to
various funds, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited, a company
incorporated in the Republic of Ireland. The ultimate parent company is Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings
Inc. acompany incorporated in Japan.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, and it is the intention of the directors to
continue to develop the activities of the Company in consultation with its parent. Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank Limited is directly supporting the business development of the Company. On 25 January 2016, the
Company issued new share capital of 34 million €1 ordinary shares, upon the receipt of an investment of €
34 million from its parent company Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited.

The Company has entered into agreements with various entities to which it provides services. Under these

agreements, the Company has undertaken to provide administration and management company services for
an agreed fee.
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Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

3 Administrative expenses

30 September 30 September
2020 2019
€ €
Staff costs 18,197,043 17,521,382
Other administrative expenses 10,474,271 9,527,431
28,671,314 27,048,813
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
€ €

Saff costs comprise:
Wages and salaries 13,270,915 13,699,704
Socia welfare costs 1,472,961 1,455,274
Pension costs 886,575 737,773
Other costs 2,566,592 1,628,631
18,197,043 17,521,382

The average number of persons employed by the Company (including directors) during the year was 215
(September 2019: 219). The Company shared the use of facilities with SMT Trustees (Ireland) Limited
(“SMTTIL") during the period. The related costs were allocated and recharged on an agreed basis, as set

out in service level agreements.
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Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

4  Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

The profit on ordinary activities before taxation has been determined after charging the following:

30 September 30 September
2020 2019
€ €
Directors remuneration:
Fees 106,000 148,000
Other remuneration 790,276 769,431
Defined pension contribution scheme 43,849 98
No retirement benefits are accruing for directors.
Auditor’s remuneration:
Audit 23,000 23,000
Tax advisory services 6,050 7,100
Other assurance services 81,773 74,317
Depreciation 322,438 348,688
Amortisation of intangible assets 577,613 1,927,411

Operating lease rentals:
Land & buildings 1,143,479 1,164,753
Other assets 69,231 60,535
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Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

5 Taxation on ordinary activities

30 September 30 September
2020 2019
€ €
(@ Total tax expense recognised in the income
statement
Current tax
Current tax on income for the period 3,224 8,838
Under /(over) provision in respect of prior year - -
Deferred taxation
Under / (Over) provision in prior period - -
Origination and reversal of timing differences (5,661) 9,092
Total tax (credit) / expense (2,437) 17,930
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
€ €
(b) Total tax expense recognised in OCI
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 51,140 (24,806)
(c) Tax reconciliation
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
€ €
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2,093,294 94,566
Corporation tax based on standard
rate at 12.5% (September 2019: 12.5%) 261,661 11,821
Deficiency / (Excess) of depreciation over
capital allowances (114,536) 85,198
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 627 745
Differences arising from tax at the higher rate 7,246 9,443
Reimbursement for Group relief surrendered - -
Lossrelief (utilised) / carried forward (157,435) (89,277)
Total tax (credit) / charge (2,437) 17,930
Income tax on health insurance premiums 71,592 67,924

The Income tax on health insurance premiumsis included in other costs as per note 3 above.
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Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

6 Intangible Fixed Assets

As a 30 September 2020 Software Total
€ €
Cost
At 30 September 2019 9,669,143 9,669,143
Additions during year 1,478,675 1,478,675
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2020 11,147,818 11,147,818
Amortisation
At 30 September 2019 6,761,897 6,761,897
Amortisation for year 577,613 577,613
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2020 7,339,510 7,339,510
Net book value at 30 September 2020 3,808,308 3,808,308
As at 30 September 2019 Software Total
€ €
Cost
At 30 September 2018 7,804,061 7,804,061
Additions during year 1,865,082 1,865,082
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2019 9,669,143 9,669,143
Amortisation
At 30 September 2018 4,834,486 4,834,486
Amortisation for year 1,927,411 1,927,411
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2019 6,761,897 6,761,897
Net book value at 30 September 2019 2,907,246 2,907,246

The intangible asset relating to the development of Advent Geneva and Paladyne as the core fund
administration system was fully amortised during the prior period.

The Company has been working to replace its front-end client reporting delivery portal with Vermillion

which went live on 1 August 2019. The additions during the current period are related to Paladyne, NTAS
development costs and further development of the core administration system.
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Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

7 Tangible Fixed Assets

Furniture & Computer
As a 30 September 2020 Equipment Software Equipment Total
€ € € €
Cost
At 30 September 2019 1,495,299 1,550,749 3,731,193 6,777,241
Additions during year 16,669 54,666 366,465 437,800
Disposals during year (132,545) (905,910) (1,820,413) (2,858,868)
At 30 September 2020 1,379,423 699,505 2,277,245 4,356,173
Depreciation
At 30 September 2019 1,326,131 1,482,813 3,459,553 6,268,497
Depreciation for year 51,349 65,765 205,324 322,438
Disposals during year (132,545) (9059100 (1,820,413) (2,858,868)
At 30 September 2020 1,244,935 642,668 1,844,464 3,732,067
Net book vaue at 30 September
2020 134,488 56,837 432,781 624,106
Furniture & Computer
As a 30 September 2019 Equipment Software Equipment Total
€ € € €
Cost
At 30 September 2018 1,350,366 1,542,471 3,617,563 6,510,400
Additions during year 144,933 8,278 113,630 266,841
Disposals during year - - - -
At 30 September 2019 1,495,299 1,550,749 3,731,193 6,777,241
Depreciation
At 30 September 2018 1,294,609 1,399,144 3,226,056 5,919,809
Depreciation for year 31,522 83,669 233,497 348,688
Disposals during year - - - -
At 30 September 2019 1,326,131 1,482,813 3,459,553 6,268,497
Net book value at 30 September
2019 169,168 67,936 271,640 508,744
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8 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

30 September 30 September

2020 2019

€ €

Fee debtors 3,685,620 3,531,521
Prepayments and accrued income 1,343,841 1,080,852
Other debtors 229,155 97,726
Short term asset on derivatives 165,687 19,702
Amount owed by related companies 1,654,644 3,896,992
Deferred tax 8,927 54,406
7,087,874 8,681,199

In addition, the Company has a further unrecognised deferred tax asset of €4,526,633 (September 2019: €
4,813,762). This has not been recognised due to the level of uncertainty over the timing of its recovery.

9 Cashatbank andinhand

30 September 30 September

2020 2019

€ €

Current accounts 5,148,262 3,838,641
Callable deposits 24,130,033 21,144,637

29,278,295 24,983,278
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10

11

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Ooooooooooooooooooad

30 September 30 September

2020 2019

€ €

Accruals 3,396,873 2,565,388
Corporation tax 3,224 8,838
Interest payable 9,787 992
Trade creditors 1,243,791 505,917
Short term liability on derivatives 3,131 266,264
Amount owed to parent 821,593 821,593
Amount owed to related companies 411,030 456,030
5,889,429 4,625,022

Accruals include creditorsin relation to PAYE of €348,328 (2019: €295,391), PRSI of €168,031 (2019: €
182,220) and other taxes of €65,391 (2019: € 54,073).The amount owed to the parent company is
unsecured and interest free. The amount owed to the related companies includes a balance relating to
services as outlined in the services agreement. The balance is unsecured and interest free and repayable on

demand.

Called up share capital

30 September 30 September
2020 2019
€ €
Authorised
400,000 ordinary shares of GBP £1 each
100,000,000 ordinary shares of EUR €1 each
Allotted, called up and fully paid
400,000 ordinary shares of GBP £1 each 492,338 492,338
62,500,000 ordinary shares of EUR €1 each 62,500,000 62,500,000
62,992,338 62,992,338

On 8 January 2016, the Company increased its authorised share capital from 50,000,000 to 100,000,000
ordinary shares of Euro 1 each. On 25 January 2016, the Company issued new share capital of 34 million €
1 shares, upon the receipt of an investment of €34 million from its parent company Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
(Ireland) Limited. The proceeds of the allotment will be used to fund the continued development of the

Company business.
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12 Additiond paid in capital

30 September 30 September

2020 2019

€ €

Additional paidin capital 4,050,000 4,050,000
4,050,000 4,050,000

In connection with €4.05 million of the total amounts received to date by the Company under the terms of
the subordinated loan arrangements for the non-interest bearing loans, the Directors noted the resolution
made in September 2013 by Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited (the *Parent Company”) that they
would not demand repayment of the loans and that they are repayable solely at the valition of the
Company. Accordingly, as these amounts have now been confirmed as non-repayable and do not bear
interest or carry any other economic obligation they were re-classified on the statement of financia
position from long-term liabilities to capital, in order to better reflect the capital nature of the transactions.

13 Commitments

Annua commitments under non-cancellable operating |eases are as follows:

30 September 30 September
2020 2019
Land and Other Land and Other
buildings buildings
€ € € €
Operating leases which
expire:
Within one year 822,476 55,952 1,011,161 20,071
In the second to fifth years
inclusive 2,835,564 63,148 3,744,244 168,260
Over five years 614,899 - 2,800,394 -
4,272,939 119,100 7,555,799 188,331

Under an agreement, the Company has undertaken to provide or procure company secretarial and general
administration and support services to SMT Trustees (Ireland) Limited and Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank
Limited (London Branch), formerly known as Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited, a custody company
based in the UK. In return, the Companies have agreed that afee will be paid for the services provided.
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14 Pension costs

30 September 30 September

2020 2019

€ €

Pension charge for year 886,575 737,773
Pension charge payable at end of year 66,502 64,806

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for its executive directors and employees.
15 Related parties

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. whose consolidated
financial statements are publicly available. The Company is availing of the exemption under Section 33 of
FRS 102 ‘Related Party Disclosures to not disclose transactions with other group undertakings which
would be eliminated on consolidation in the financial statements of the group.

16 Ultimate parent company

The Company’s immediate parent undertaking is Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited, a company
incorporated in Ireland. The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking is Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings
Inc., acompany incorporated in Japan. The largest group in which the financial statements are consolidated
is that headed by Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. Copies of the financial statements of Sumitomo
Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. are available to the public and may be obtained from 1-4-1 Marunouchi,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8233, Japan.

The smallest group in which the results of the company are consolidated is that headed by Sumitomo
Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited. Copies of the financia statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland)
Limited are available to the public and may be obtained from Block 5, Harcourt Centre, Harcourt Road,
Dublin 2, Ireland.
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17 Post balance sheet events

The Company has had to contend with the challenges of COVID-19 since March 2020. The Company
continues to deal with the challenges of operating in a working from home environment in an effective and
efficient manner. Whilst the commencement of the vaccine deployment is a very positive development,
nevertheless the impact of COVID-19 will continue for many months to come. The Company is adopting a
prudent outlook to its revenue projections to take account of the uncertainties of the full COVID-19 impact
and the economic adjustments that will occur once Government supports begin to recede.

The United Kingdom left the European Union on 31 December 2020. The Company have closely
monitored the Brexit process since the decision was made by the United Kingdom to withdraw and, as
expected, it did not have any material impact on the Company’s business but it is being closely monitored.

There were no other post balance sheet events which regquire amendment to or disclosure in the financial
Statements.
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Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

18 Financial instruments — Hedge accounting

The following forward foreign currency contracts were open as at 30 September 2020.

Totd
Unredised Unredised Unrealised
Buy Euro Gain (Loss) Gain/ (Loss)
Sell US Dallar
$2,035,000 €1,778,445 €51,974 - €51,974
Sell Japanese Yen
\480,000,000 €3,948,410 €76,918 - €76,918
Sell Austraian Dollar
$40,000 €24,316 - (€84) (€84)
Sell British Pounds
£2,127,500 €2,370,239 €36,795 (€3,047) €33,748
€165,687 (€3,131) €162,556

These cash flow hedges will settle quarterly over the period 1 December 2020 — 30 September 2021. The
fair value on the open contracts was calculated using WM Reuters forward fx rates. During the year a loss
of €96,866 (2019: loss of €363,218) was reclassified to the income statement, having previously been
recorded in the statement of other comprehensive income statement in accordance with the cash flow

hedging policy. No collatera exists for any derivative contracts.

Level 1
EUR

Assets
Forward currency contracts
Total -
Liabilities
Forward currency contracts
Total -

Leved 2
€165,687
€165,687

€3,047
€3,047

Level 3
EUR

Total
EUR

€165,687
- €165,687

€3,047
- €3,047

Unredlised future gains and losses on these forward contracts have been recognised directly in the
statement of financial position and the statement of other comprehensive income (page 11), in accordance

with the Company’s cash flow hedge accounting policy.
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18 Financial instruments — Hedge accounting (continued)

The following forward foreign currency contracts were open as at 30 September 2019.

Totd
Unredised Unredised Unrealised
Buy Euro Gain (Loss) Gain/ (Loss)
Sell US Dallar
$2,100,000 €1,812,839 - (€81,979) (€81,979)
Sell Japanese Yen
\450,000,000 €3,664,205 - (€151,432) (€151,432)
Sell Austraian Dollar
$160,000 €97,016 €72 (€1,014) (€942)
Sell British Pounds
£2,275,000 €2,537,645 €19,630 (€31,839) (€12,209)
€19,702 (€266,264) (€246,562)

These cash flow hedges settled over the quarterly over the period 1 December 2019 — 30 September 2020.
The fair value on the open contracts was calculated using WM Reuters forward fx rates. During the year a
loss of €363,218 (2018: gain of €157,530) was reclassified to the income statement, having previously
been recorded in the statement of other comprehensive income statement in accordance with the cash flow
hedging policy. No collateral exists for any derivative contracts.

Level 1 Leve 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets
Forward currency contracts €19,702 €19,702
Total - €19,702 - €19,702
Liabilities
Forward currency contracts €266,264 €266,264
Total - €266,264 - €266,264

Unredlised future gains and losses on these forward contracts have been recognised directly in the
statement of financial position and the statement of other comprehensive income (page 11), in accordance
with the Company’s cash flow hedge accounting policy.
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19 Guarantee under Irish Companies Act, 2014

Under Section 357 (1) (b) of the Irish Companies Act, 2014 companies registered in Ireland may be
exempted from filing their individual accounts provided that their liabilities are irrevocably guaranteed by
a Parent Company, which is required to be a registered Company of a Member State of the European
Union. The Parent Company must incorporate the results of the subsidiaries into its Group accounts. The
results of the Company have been consolidated into the results of the immediate Parent Company and
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited has agreed to irrevocably guarantee the liabilities of the
Company as at 30 September 2020, in accordance with Section 357 of the Act.

20 Approval of thefinancia statements

Thefinancia statements were approved by the board of directors on 26 January 2021.
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2021 31
2021 31 2020 30

( ) C ) ( ) « )
4,471,013 590,129 3,808,307 502,658
679,893 89,739 624,107 82,376
5,150,906 679,868 4,432,414 585,034
4,995,010 659,291 5,258,616 694,085
2,604,265 343,737 1,654,644 218,396
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

Independent auditors report to the unitholders of U.S Dallar Portfolio, a sub-fund of Daiwa Gaika
MMF

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements of U.S. Dollar Portfolio, a sub-fund of Daiwa Gaika MMF:
give atrue and fair view of the sub-fund's assets, liabilities and financia position as at 31 December 2020 and of its results for the
year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland (accounting standards issued
by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “ The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and Irish law).
We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements, which comprise:
the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020;
the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;
the Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units for the year then ended;
the Schedule of Investments as at 31 December 2020; and
the notes to the financia statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basisfor opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (“1SAs (Ireland)”) and applicable law.

Our responsibilities under ISAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financia statementsin
Ireland, which includes IAASA’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with these
reguirements.

Conclusionsrelating to going concern
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the sub-fund's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from

the date on which the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financia statements, we have concluded that the Alternative Investment Fund Manager's (“AIFM™) use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financia statementsis appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the sub-fund's ability to
continue as a going concerns.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the AIFM with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.
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Reporting on other information
The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements other than the financial
statements and our auditors report thereon. The AIFM is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
this report, any form of assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statementsor a
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is amaterial misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

Responsibilitiesfor the financial statements and the audit
Responsihilities of the AIFM for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Alternative Investment Fund Manager's Responsibilities set out on page 5, the AIFM is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework giving atrue and fair view.

The AIFM is also responsible for such internal control asthe AIFM determines is hecessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the AIFM is responsible for assessing the sub-fund' s ability to continue as going concerns, disclosing as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the AIFM intends to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is ahigh level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Our audit testing might include testing complete popul ations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data auditing techniques.
However, it typically involves selecting alimited number of items for testing, rather than testing complete populations. We will often seek to
target particular items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable usto draw a
conclusion about the population from which the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementsislocated on the IAASA website at:
https://www.iaasa.ie/getmedi a’b2389013- 1cf6-458b-9b8f-a98202dc9c3a/Description_of _auditors responsibilities for_audit.pdf.

This description forms part of our auditors report.

Use of thisreport

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the unitholders of each of the sub-funds as a body in accordance with
the European Union (Alternative Investment Fund Managers) Regulations 2013 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion,

accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dublin
21 April 2021

The maintenance and integrity of the Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd. website is the responsibility of the AIFM, together with the
Distributor ; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors
accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on
the website.

Legidlation in the Republic of Ireland governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Independent auditor’s report to the member of SMT Fund Services (Ireland)
Limited

1 Report on the audit of the financia statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (‘the Company’) for the year
ended 30 September 2020 set out on pages 10 to 33, which comprise the Income statement, Statement of financial
position, Statement of other comprehenseive income, Statement of changes in equity and related notes, including
the summary of significant accounting policies set out in note 1. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is Irish Law and FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Sandard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements:

give atrue and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Company as at 30 September 2020
and of its profit for the year then ended,;

have been properly prepared in accordance with FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicablein the
UK and Republic of Ireland; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.
Basisfor opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland) ) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statementsin Ireland, including the Ethical Standard

issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our
opinion.

We have nothing to report on going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that
basisfor aperiod of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements. We have nothing
to report in these respects.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the financial statements. The other information
comprises the information included in the directors report and statement of directors responsibilities. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements
or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have not identified material misstatements in the other
information.

Based solely on that work, we report that
we have not identified material misstatements in the directors report;
in our opinion, the information given in the directors report is consistent with the financial statements;
in our opinion, the directors report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2014.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014
We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements to be
readily and properly audited and the financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

The Companies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors remuneration
and transactions required by sections 305 to 312 of the Act are not made. We have nothing to report in this regard.

2 Respective responsibilities and restrictions on use
Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the directors are responsible
for: the preparation of the financia statementsincluding being satisfied that they give atrue and fair view; such
internal control asthey determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia statements.
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A fuller description of our responsibilitiesis provided on IAASA’s website at
https.//www.i aasa.ie/getmedi a/b23890131cf64580h9b8fa98202dc9c3a/Description of auditors
responsiblities for audit.pdf .

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 391 of the Companies
Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’ s members those matters we
arerequired to state to them in an auditor’ s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

John Ahern 27 January 2021
for and on behalf of

KPMG

Chartered Accountants, Statutory Audit Firm

1 Harbourmaster Place

IFSC

Dublinl
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